
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Resources Department 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 

 

 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B 

 

Members of Licensing Sub Committee B are summoned to a meeting, which will be held 
by Zoom on, 18 February 2022 at 1.15 pm. 
 

Link to meeting: https://weareislington.zoom.uk/j/86041214018 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 17 February 2022 

 
 
Membership Substitute 

 
Councillor Phil Graham (Chair) 
Councillor Valerie Bossman-Quarshie (Vice-

Chair) 
Councillor Marian Spall 
 

All other members of the Licensing 
committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 
 

Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack

https://weareislington.zoom.uk/j/86041214018


 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 

 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 

 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council. 

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

C.  

 

Urgent non-exempt items 

 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 

1.  Holloway Food Store, 59-61 Seven Sisters Road, N7 6BH - Expedited 
review application 
 

1 - 14 

D.  

 

Exclusion of public and press 

 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 

Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 
press and public during discussion thereof. 
 

 

E.  

 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 

 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  



 
 
 
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  



 

 
  Environment & Regeneration
  Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 
 
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 
 

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s): 

Licensing Sub-Committee  18/02/2022 Finsbury Park  
 

 Exempt Non-exempt 
 
 

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY REVIEW APPLICATION 
RE: HOLLOWAY FOOD STORE, 59 – 61 SEVEN SISTERS 
ROAD LONDON N7 6BH  

 
1. Synopsis 

1.1 An application for an expedited review of the premises licence under Section 53A of the 
Licensing Act, was made by the Metropolitan Police on Wednesday 16th February 2022 
on the grounds of Serious Crime.  A copy of the review application is attached as Appendix 
1. 

1.2 The application was received at 14:33 hours on 16th February 2022.  

1.3 This application relates to an incident involving serious crime, namely an assault with a 
knife resulting in serious injury. 

1.4 On Sunday 13th February 2022, Police were called to Seven Sisters Road, N7 by a male 
stating he had been injured.  Police attended and found a male with apparent knife 
related injuries.  These injuries consisted of a deep laceration to the forearm, a 5cm slash 
to the face and a 12cm slash injury to the stomach. 

1.5 The victim informed Police that he had been assaulted by two men working in the nearby 
shop who had a ‘big machette’. This shop was identified as the Holloway Food Centre. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item C1



 

1.6 Subsequent investigation has revealed that the victim of the attack was drunk and was 
causing a disturbance within the venue.  Upon leaving, the victim has thrown fruit at the 
shop and has damaged the glass door. 

1.7 CCTV footage from the venue and nearby cameras has been interrogated.  Footage 
shows the victim causing a disturbance outside.  A male can be seen walking towards 
the victim who is stood still in the road.  The male has in his possession a large ‘Rambo’ 
style knife.  The male can be seen to make a slashing movement with the knife towards 
the victim.   

1.8 This male has been identified and is confirmed to be a member of staff from Holloway 
Food Centre. The CCTV also shows another male with a large stick chasing the victim.  
This male has also been identified and is a member of staff from the Holloway Food 
Centre. 

1.9 The victim was taken to hospital for treatment for the knife injuries.  His condition is not 
life threatening however follow up treatment will be required for his arm injury. 

1.10 Attending officers found that the two males involved had left the scene.  At the time of 
writing, the two suspects involved have not been traced by Police. 

1.11 The Police state they have serious and immediate concerns regarding the management 
of this venue and no confidence that they can operate without posing a risk to public 
safety. That in there view that such critical failings and actions by management and staff 
constitute ongoing risk of serious crime. 

2. Background 

2.1 The premises licence is currently held by Eshabil Kavak who transferred onto the Premises 
Licence in October 2020. 

2.2 Mr Kavak also became the designated premises supervisor at the premises in November 
2020.  

2.3 The premises were granted a 24 hour alcohol licence in 2006.  

3. Recommendations 

3.1 To determine the application to review the premises licence under Section 53A of the     
Licensing Act. 
 

3.2 The Committee must have regard to the application and any relevant representations, 
take such steps as mentioned in Section 53B (3) of the Act (if any), as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
3.3 The interim steps stated in Sections 53B(3) of the Act are as follows: 

a) The modification of the conditions of the premises licence; 
b) The exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence 
c) The removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence 
d) The suspension of the licence. 

 

Page 2



 

4. Conclusion and Reason for recommendations 

4.1 The Council is required to consider this summary review application in the light of all 
relevant information, and must take such steps as it considers appropriate to promote 
the licensing objectives. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Application and Certificate 
Appendix 2: Current premises licence 

Background papers: 

None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by:  

 

 

 
 Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

17 February 2022

Page 3

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



 

 

Premises Licence Summary 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises licence 
number 

LN/2537-041120  
Date of original 
grant* 

24 November 2005 

*An annual fee associated with this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the 
original grant date. 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

HOLLOWAY FOOD CENTRE 

59 - 61 SEVEN SISTERS ROAD 

Post town London Post code N7 6BH 

Telephone number 0207 561 9910 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable  

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence  

 The sale by retail of alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 

 The sale by retail of alcohol: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00  

 

 

Page 12



 
 

The opening hours of the premises: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00 
24.00  

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
Off supplies 

 

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 
Eshabil Kavak 
Flat 77 
George Lansbury House 
Progress Way 
London 
N22 5PE  

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable) 
N/A 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises 
the supply of alcohol 
Eshabil Kavak 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 
No restrictions 

 

Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N1 1XR Tel: 020 7527 3031 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence: 

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 
licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by 
a person who holds a personal licence. 

There are further ‘Mandatory conditions’ applicable to licences authorising the supply of 
alcohol.  A full list of the current mandatory conditions is available from the licensing pages 
on Islington’s web site, www.islington.gov.uk.  This list is subject to change by order of the 
Secretary of State and licensees and other responsible persons are advised to ensure they 
are aware of the latest conditions. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1       The restrictions on hours during which the sale of alcohol is authorised does not 
prohibit: 

during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol 
from the premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 

the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the 
vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 

the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which 
the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of 
State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military 

2       Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed 
premises 

3       CCTV system shall be installed and maintained inside and outside the premises, 
including a CCTV unit, which monitors the immediate vicinity of the premises.  All 
cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and 
the video recordings shall be kept available for a minimum of 31 days with time 
and date stamping. Tape recordings shall be made available to an authorised 
officer or a police officer with 24 hours of any request. 

4        Any instances of crime and disorder at the premises shall be reported to the 
Police immediately, record of these incidents shall be kept in a general incident 
log-book in which are recorded details of each day’s events. This log shall be 
made available to an authorised officer or a police officer with 24 hours of any 
request 

5       Notices will be prominently displayed at exits requesting the public to respect the 
needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

6       Noise and vibration will not be allowed to emanate from the premises so as to 
cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 

7       The premises shall enforce a proof of age scheme, which is approved by the 
authorised officer of the Council and by the Local Police. 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

1. Their shall be a minimum of three fully trained members of staff working at the 
premises when it is used under this licence during the hours of 23.00 and 8.00. 

 

Annex 4 – Plans 

Reference : 82.04/01 
 

Page 14

http://www.islington.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	C1 Holloway Food Store, 59-61 Seven Sisters Road, N7 6BH - Expedited review application
	a) The modification of the conditions of the premises licence;
	b) The exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence
	c) The removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence
	d) The suspension of the licence.




